Inbox*Sumo*

Gaire*Group*.com User Manual

Table of Contents

Table of Contents	1
Introduction	2
1. THE DASHBOARD	3

A. Dashboard Title Bar	4
B. Dashboard Summary Areas	6
2. THE MENU	8
A. Lists > Lists menu	8
1. LISTS – LISTS > LISTS MENU	8
2. TOOLS – LISTS > TOOLS MENU	
B. Campaigns > Campaigns menu	
1. CAMPAIGNS – CAMPAIGNS > CAMPAIGNS	
2. GROUPS – CAMPAIGNS > GROUPS	
C. Templates > Templates menu	23
1. My Templates – Templates > My templates	24
2. GALLERY – TEMPLATES > GALLERY	24
TERMINOLOGIES	25
TEMPLATE MODIFICATION TUTORIAL ADDENDUM	27
1. Modifying Templates in 'My templates'	29
2. Modifying Templates in 'Campaigns'	Error! Bookmark not defined.
AUTORESPONDER TUTORIAL ADDENDUM	Error! Bookmark not defined.

Introduction

Required order before creating your first campaign:

- 1. Set <u>Account</u> requirements.
- 2. Create at least one <u>List</u>.
- 3. Create or import at least one <u>Template</u>.
- 4. Create your first <u>Campaign</u>.

Login with your email address and email password.

CUSTOMER AREA		
Please login		
Email *		
Email		
Password *		
Password		
Remember me		
Forgot password?	Lo	gin

1. THE DASHBOARD

Once logged in, your Dashboard will be displayed.

CUSTOMER ARI	EA	Ξ			🗃 💄 Joe Estates 🗸
Joe Estates		Dashboard			Dashboard > Dashboard
🕑 Dashboard					
Lists	<	• At a glance			
🐱 Campaigns	<	0		•	-0-
<u>T</u> Templates	<	0		0	
\star Api keys		Campaigns		Lists	
		More info 오		Mor	e info 🔿
		0	and the second	0	
		Segments	- C • J	Subscribers	22
		More info \Theta		Mor	e info 🔿
				and the second s	
		0		0	1
		Templates		API keys	
		More info \Theta		Mor	einfo 🥹
		Recent activity			C Refresh

A. Dashboard Title Bar

The Title Bar at the top of the Dashboard is for quick links and your account settings.

CUSTOMER AREA =	🗃 💄 Joe Estates 🗸
 Customer Area icon is simply a 'home' link, available on any page to take you back to the Dashboard. 	CUSTOMER AREA
2. Collapse icon 'hides' the left menu to give you more workspace in the main boo	ly. ≡
3. Account Usage icon gives you a quick summary of your Lists, Campaigns and Subscribers.	Account usage Sending quota
a. Sending quota	Lists 0% 0/×
b. Lists	Campaigns 0% 0/w
c. Campaigns	Subscribers 0% 0/w Refresh

- d. Subscribers
- 4. Your name in the upper right has two links, one to your 'My Account' settings and the other 'Logout.'



- a. Logout It is important that if you are using an office computer or a public computer that you log out of your account or your account profile email, password and other private information such as all customer information would be at risk.
- b. My Account Has two tabs, each are very important information that is used for your templates and the Campaigns you create. Without some of this information, you will not be able to finish building a campaign, which goes without saying, you will not be able to send a campaign.
 - i. Profile tab Includes First name, Last name, Email, Password, Timezone, Language and a Browse button so that you can upload an image of yourself. You must use your email address and assigned password that matches your email password.

Joe Estates	Account info	Dashboard > Account > Updat		
O Dashboard	Profile Company			
🗉 Lists 🤸				
🖾 Campaigns 🔍	First name *	Last name *		
I Templates <	Joe	Estates		
	Email *	Confirm email *		
🖈 Api keys	skywaterestates@theskywatergroup.com	skywaterestates@theskywatergroup.com		
	Password	Confirm password		
	Password	Confirm password		
	Timezone *	Language		
	(GMT-05:00) America/New_York	Application default		
	New avatar Browse_ No file selected.	Säve changes		

ii. Company tab – Includes company name. Company information are those items that will be auto-filled in your templates if you use 'tags'. (More on that later in this manual.)

Company address items that are required are designated with an *. For company phone, it could be your direct contact number, whether it is a cell phone or landline if you are an independent contractor (such as a real estate agent). As will be explained, the information in the templates can be changed by you.

CUSTOMER AREA		📰 💄 Joe Estates 🗸
Joe Estates	Account info	Dashboard > Account > Update
O Dashboard		
🗉 Lists 🤇	Profile Company	
🖾 Campaigns 🔇	First name *	Last name *
T Templates	Joe	Estates
	Email *	Confirm email *
* Api keys	skywaterestates@theskywatergroup.com	skywaterestates@theskywatergroup.com
	Password	Confirm password
	Password	Confirm password
	Timezone *	Language
	(GMT-05:00) America/New_York	Application default
	New avatar Browse_ No file selected.	Save changes

B. Dashboard Summary Areas

Under the Title Bar the Dashboard contains 7 summary areas:

- 1. At a glance
 - a. Campaigns
 - b. Lists
 - c. Segments
 - d. Subscribers
 - e. Templates
 - f. API Keys

Each 'glance box' is a link to view, search, modify and create that area. (For example, if you have sent out 20 campaigns, you will be able to use the headers to search a campaign, click on that campaign to view and if it has not been sent, to modify it.) Dashboard
Deshboard > Deshboard

Image: Constraints of the constraints of the

The remaining summary areas

allows you to quickly view all current activity with respect to what you recently did, Subscriber, List, Campaign and Unsubscribe growth as your activities with each expands and a quick view on <u>Delivery vs. Bounces</u>.

<u>Delivery</u> are those emails that reached their destination, whether unopened or not. <u>Bounces</u> are those email addresses which were unable to be delivered. There are many reasons for this – the email address is no longer valid, the server was down, etc. Bounce emails are acceptable to a certain rate within your lists.

If you have a bounce rate of more than 3-4%, you must remove those email addresses that are not reaching their destination or you can become blacklisted and it will harm your ability to reach those email addresses that are valid. It is imperative that you protect your own lists or it could harm your own business!

- 2. Recent activity
- 3. Subscribers growth
- 4. Lists growth
- 5. Campaigns growth
- 6. Delivery vs Bounces
- 7. Unsubscribe growth

The left menu contains the most important aspect of the application as it features the most important aspects of your email campaigns. There are three distinct areas of any email marketing – contact lists (Lists), the products or services you want to inform a contact list of (Campaigns) and the appearance of the sent campaign (Templates).

You have the ability to create, modify, add and delete any of your Lists, Campaigns and Templates. As you work in these areas, you will increase your knowledge in the power of this application and email marketing.

There are hidden treasures, such as forms (to place on your website) and tracking (which aids greatly in your follow-up) and so much more that can and will develop your business if used methodically.

The following gives you an overview of the main links of the left menu:

A. Lists > Lists menu

1. LISTS – LISTS > LISTS MENU

Clicking on the List link you can view current lists or create a new list. If there are a large number of lists, the text and drop down boxes will allow you to search for specific lists you have

Joe Estates		Lists						Dashboard >	Lists > Viev
⑦ Dashboard		(
🔳 Lists		E Lists						Create ne	ew Refrest
» Lists» Tools		Name	Display name	Subscribers count	Optin	Optout	Date added	Last updated	Options
🛛 Campaigns	<	Rune	Display nume	count			duucu	upuated	options
	<				~	V			
T Templates									
I Templates ★ Api keys		No results found.							

For any new list you are creating, you must create the list name <u>before</u> being able to add or upload any contacts (lists) you may have to import. At this stage, you are only concerned about creating the list name and the list criteria, not adding or importing names.

CUSTOMER AREA

Joe Estates	
Dashboard	
Lists	<
Campaigns	<
[Templates	<
🕻 Api keys	
🕈 Api keys	

The create window requires you to input pertinent data such as General Data, Defaults, Notification settings and Company information needed for any campaign.

Jue Estates	Create new list						Deathboard - Llats - Charla him		
O Deahboard							Graf		
III Liata	* Please fill in your mail list	details.							
 Uata Tools 	General data				Defaults				
🛱 Cempeigne	C Name*		Display name		Trom name*				
I Templatas	C. List neme, La: Neusletter subscribers		Diapley name		Joe Estates				
* Apikaya	Description *				From email "				
	List detailed description, something:	our autoordbara will assily reco	grissi		romanaz				
					Reply to *				
					nesty to skywsterestatas@bheskywstergroup.com				
					Subject				
	Optin*:		Optout*		Wavidy namelattar				
	Double opt-in	V	Double opt-out	v					
	or other spectra	v	Constant about the	1.Y					
	Notifications								
	Subscribe *			lange to the second sec	Subscribe To				
	No			¥	w ms@nydemain.sam				
	Unaubecribe*				Unsubscribe To				
	No			v	meijimjdaman.sem				
	Company details amount and	tunt company							
	Name*				Type/industry				
	Hama				Please select				
	Country *								
	Please select			~	Finne select		v		
	Address 1."				Address 2				
	Address 1				Address S				
	Zone name		City -		Zip code*	Phone			
	Zore name		Gity		Zpicolia	Phone			
	Address formet " [/welleble tags]								
	[COMPARY_NAME] [COMPARY_ADDRESS_4] [COMPARY_ [COMPARY_COLINITER] [COMPARY_COLINITER]	ndoress_x] Company_zip]							
							Save changes		

General Data – Name of the list and your display name of the list if you want it different. A summary description of your list. Contact defaults would be those set in your Account Settings. If you wish to change these for a certain list, you would do so here. Opt In or Opt Out type, either single or double. For example, a double opt-in is when a subscriber signs up on your website (first opt-in) and then receives an email to confirm the registration. A single opt-in or opt-out is when someone clicks to register (or unregister) and is immediately opted in or out without receiving an email that must be confirmed.

Notifications – Whether you wish to receive email notifications of each opt-in or opt-out. Keep in mind that you can login to your Dashboard to see the opt-ins and opt-outs.

Company Details – Defaults would be those in your Account Settings. As in the Contact information in the General Data above, the Company Details default to your Company Account Settings. If you wish to change these for a certain list, you would do so here.

Once you have created your list, it will appear in the list window, with the name of the list, display name if you gave it one, and there will be 4 icon links to the right of the list.

CUSTOMER AREA	=						5	💄 💄 Joe Estates 🗸
Joe Estates	Lists						C	lashboard > Lists > View a
O Dashboard	1 							
I Lists → ≫ Lists ≫ Tools	Lists	1	7	7		7	7	Create new Refresh Displaying 1-1 of 1 result.
🐼 Campaigns 🔇	Name	Display name	Subscribers count	Opt in	Opt out	Date added	Last updated	Options
	1 1	1		×	×			
T Templates <	Personal Contacts	Personal Contacts	0	Single	Single	11/21/14 12:30 PM	11/21/14 12:30 PM	00/0

The 4 icons on the right are <u>Overview</u>, <u>Copy</u>, <u>Update</u> and <u>Delete</u>. Copy and Delete are selfexplanatory for the list. The Update icon is to edit any criteria you originally inputted.

The <u>Overview icon</u>, the first one, is of most interest here as it is has some powerful features over time you will make more use of. It is noteworthy here to clarify even though it is implied, the 'Overview boxes' and 'Information headers' that appear from the <u>Overview icon</u> are for that list only! Each list will have their own Overview, Copy, Update and Delete icons.

Once you click on the Overview icon, the List Overview will appear. You will, by applying your time, realize this area has extremely powerful features for your marketing development:

CUSTOMER AREA	=		🖩 🔔 Jos Estatus 👻
Jos Estates	List overview	Destinant - Lins -	Personal Contains - Cristolaus
O Deshboard	III Overview		Criefs new Uptions
I Linn * > Linn > Tools		8 Forms Tools	And a second
🛎 Cempelgna 🤍	Sutscribers Segments Custom fields	reges Tools Listcols	
I Templetes *	Otar Otar Otar Otar	O Nanga	-
★ Aplings			
	Subscribers growth	Gen Campaigns growth	٥
	17 Dentisent	44	No-weatherst
	32	163	
		85	
	42	-43	
	42	4	
	Delivery vs Bounces	E Unsubscribe growth	
	10. ■ Balang tarakit gandi ■ Balang tarakit gandi	48	
	18		
	80	(fas	
	42	45	
	48	42	



Subscriber box - you can manage your existing subscribers (create/update/remove) and also you can adjust your list depending on your subscribers. For example you can add new custom fields or remove existing.

CUSTOMER AREA	=								1 Joe Estates -
Joe Estates	List s	ubscriber	s				Dashboard - L	ists – Personal Contects	- Subscribers - View a
O Deshboard	lane.								
🗉 Lists 🤇 🤇	Quick li	nice =							
🐼 Campaigns 🤟									
we manifestine	and a second								
I Templates	1 Lis	t subscriber	s				1	Create new Sulk action i	from source Refresh
T Templates C	1 Lis	t subscriber	'S			1		Create new Bulk ection	from source Refresh
	Lis	t subscriber	S Date added	tp oddress	Status	Email	First name	Create new Sulk action 1	Constanting Constanting
T Templates C	Lis			tp address	Status Choose	Email			Constanting Constanting
T Templates C				tp address	Choose 🗸	Email			Constanting Constanting

The second icon on the upper right, 'Bulk Action from Source' is one of the most powerful features. Allowing you to be able to match subscribers added here against the ones existing in the list and make a bulk action against them! It will allow you to make one of the following actions – Subscribe, Unsubscribe or Delete. Please note, this is not the list import ability, for list import go to your list overview, followed by Tools box followed by the Import box.

them! Please note, 1	scribers added here against the ones existing in the list and make a bulk action against this is not the list import ability, for list import go to your list overview, followed by owed by the Import box.
ram file	
Browse.	No file selected.
Bulk action fr	om CSV file, one email address per row and/or separated by a comma.
rom text	
Bulk action fr	om text area, one emeij address per line and/or separated by a comma.
Choose	-
	scribers found in file/text area take this action:



<u>Segmentation box</u> - you can segment your list with various criteria based on your custom list fields and on a high number of operators. Segmentation will help you

target a specific type of users when sending campaigns.

<u>Custom Fields box</u>, <u>Pages box</u> and <u>Forms box</u> - are for your website and visitor subscriber areas. You have the ability to create, customize and add these forms to your website for your site visitors to subscribe or unsubscribe. You will not need much web building knowledge to apply these areas.

Below is the Custom Fields page. You can create and customize the register/subscribe fields for your website pages where visitors can fill out and they will be added to your list. You can make multiple lists for not only contact type, i.e. Broker, Agent, etc., but for different products or services. For example, if you have clients interested in Real Estate and Yachts, you can have them subscribe or unsubscribe to one, the other, or both!

CUSTOMER AREA							🖬 💄 Joe Estates -
Joe Estates	List custom fields				Deahboen	- Lists - Perso	nel Contects - Custom field
O Dashboard							
🗉 Lista 🤇	Quick links -						
🚳 Compoigns 🤇 🤇							
I Templetes	E List custom fields						
★ Apikeys	I Text field						
	Label"	Teg *	Required *	Visibility *		Sort Order *	
	Emeil	EMAIL	Yes	Visible	¥	0	~
	Help text		Default value				
	Help test.		Default value				
	I≣ Text field						
	Label *	Teg *	Required *	Visibility *		Sort Order *	
	First name	FNAME	No	Visible	*	1	*
	Help text		Default value				
	Help text.		Default value				
							Remove

Below is the Pages page and previews the first page of the 8 pre-built pages you can use for your website.

The pre-built pages are:

Subscribe form Pending subscribe Subscription confirmed Update profile Unsubscribe form Unsubscribe confirmation Subscribe confirm email



Unsubscribe confirm email

Quick links -	Select mother list page to edit
	Subscribe form Pending subscribe
Youraubscribe form units: http://www.theakywatergroup.com/meiler/index.php/lists/mk1990d0a1012/subscribe	Subscription confirmed Update Profile
When the user will reach the subscription form, he will see this page .	Unsubscribe form: Unsubscribe confirmation Subscribe confirm email
Subscribe form	Unsubscribe confirm email
antent	
B I U 5 x, x* I, □ □ = = = 11 S E E E E = 11 S S = ■ = □ O E	
Styles + Format + Fornt + Size + A- D- 2 J ?	
[LIST_NAME]	
We're happy you decided to subscribe to our email fist. Please take a few seconds and fill in the fist details in order to subscribe to our list. You will receive an email to confirm your subscription, just to be sure this is your email address.	
[LIST_FIELDS]	
	[SUBMIT_BUTTON]
Available tage [LIST_NAME] [LIST_FIELDS] [SUBMIT_BUTTON]	
	Seve changes



<u>Tools box</u> - is used to <u>import, export and copy your list/subscribers</u>. CSV and Text files will be most applicable to you, while the database box is for more advanced users that do have their own MySQL databases.

Clicking on the Tools box brings you to the options to Import, Export or Copy a list:

CUSTOMER AREA				🚍 💄 Joe Estates -
Joe Estates	List tools			Deshboerd Lists Personel Contects List thois
O Deshboerd	-			
E Lists (List tools			List overview
🖾 Campaigns 🤇	Import	Evenert	Contra	
T Templetes	Import	Export	Сору	
🖈 Api keys	Tools	Tools	Subscribers	
	@ View	@view	@Viev	

Clicking on the Import box brings up a window to choose a list you have in CSV file format. NOTE: Excel documents may be saved in CSV format. The window includes a link for a CSV file example.

	Import from CSV file	×
Import subscribers	Please note, we only accept valid CSV files that contain a header, that is the column names for the data to be imported. We also have a limit on the file size you are allowed to upload, that is 20MB. The import process might fail with some of the files, mainly because these are not correctly formatted or they contain invalid data. You should first do a test import(in a test list) and see if that goes as planned then do it for your actual fist. Important: The CSV file column names will be used to create the list TASS, if a tag does not exist, it will be created. You can also click here to see a cav file example.	
A selectification import	File Browse. No file selected. Close Uploed fil	

Clicking on the Export box brings up a window to choose the Subscriber list you wish to export. Simply choose a list, click on export and save it to a location on your computer.

CUSTOMER AREA	🚍 🔳 JoeEstates -
Joe Estates	Export subscribers Daubberd - Liss - Personal Contexts - CRV Export
O Dashboard	The export process will start shortly.
🗉 Lists 🤇	While the export is running it is recommended you leave this page as it is and wait for the export to finish. The exporter runs in batches of 500 subscribers per file with a pause of 1 seconds between the batches, therefore the export process might take a while depending on your fist size and number of subscribers to export.
🖾 Campaigns 🤇	This is a tedious process, so at tight and wait for it to finish.
T Templates	CSV export progress
★ Apikeys	From a total of 8 subscribers, so far 8 have been processed, 0 successfully and 0 with errors. 9% completed.
	Your list has to subscribers to report:
	Voor flat hea no subsoriben to export
	0

2. TOOLS – LISTS > TOOLS MENU

Click on Lists > Tools menu and two boxes appear, Sync (Subscribers) and Split (Lists.)

CUSTOMER AREA			📰 🧘 Joe Estates -
Joe Estates	Tools		Deshboard - Lists - Toola
O Deshboard	120		
E Lists ~ > Lists > Tools	Sync	Split	
😂 Campaigns 🤇	Subscribers	List	
I Templates	() () () () () () () () () ()	(Ovine)	
* Apikeya	O VIEW	U CEN	

i. Sync Subscribers box

'rimary list *	
Personal Contacts	~
econdery list *	
Personal Contacts	Y
ction on missing subscribers	
Do nothing	~
What actions to take when a subs	criber is found in the primary list but not in the secondary list
ction on duplicate subscribers Do nothing	~
	·
Do nothing What actions to take when same a	subscriber is found in both lists
T MAY SHOWED	subscriber is found in both lists
Do nothing What actions to take when same a action when distinct subscriber Do nothing	subscriber is found in both lists
Do nothing What actions to take when some s action when distinct subscriber Do nothing What actions to take when some s	subscriber is found in both lists status

ii. Split List box

Split list	3
This tool ellows you to split a big list into multiple smelle selected list will be moved into new lists, not copied.	r ones. Please note that subscribers from the
List *	
Personal Contacts	~
Number of sublists *	
2	
How many subscribers to move at once *	
500	~
	Close Split

B. Campaigns > Campaigns menu

(NOTE* - Be sure to set up your <u>Account</u>, and create/import at least one <u>List</u> and one <u>Template</u> before creating your first <u>Campaign</u>.)

1. CAMPAIGNS – CAMPAIGNS > CAMPAIGNS.

Click on the left menu, Campaigns > Campaigns and you can either create or modify a campaign (if it was not yet sent) or manage Groups.

CUSTOMER AREA									Joe Estates
Joe Estates	Your campaigns							Desh	boerd - Compeigns - View
O Deshboard	Transaction of the								
🗏 Lists 🤇	Your campaigns	8						Create new	Manage groups Refresh
🛛 Cempeigns 👋	Compaign nome	Туре	Group	List	Segment	Status	Date added	Send at	Options
 Campaigns Groups 		اسا	1						
T Templates	No results found.								
★ Apikeys									10 🗸

Click on the 'Create new' button to begin creating a new campaign. There are two required fields, you must type in a campaign name and then in the drop down list, choose which list you want to send the campaign to. NOTE – There are four stages to creating a campaign, Details, Setup, Template and Confirmation.

CUSTOMER AREA	=		🖬 🧘 Joe Estates -
Joe Estates	Create new campaign		Deshboerd - Campaigns - Create no
O Dashboard			
E Lists C	Create new campaign		Cancel
🕲 Campaigns 🔍 👻	Campaign name *	Туре	Group
 Campaigns Groups 	Campaign 1	Regular	V Choose V
T Templetes	List*	Segment	
★ Apikeys	Personal Contacts (5 subscribers)	Choose	×
	Details Setup Template Confirmation		Save and next

Your new campaign can be seen on the campaign list. Click on the 'Campaign name' or the 'Pencil icon' to the right to edit/modify the campaign.

CUSTOMER AREA									📰 💄 Joe Estates -
Joe Estates	Your campai	gns						D	ashboard > Campaigns > View
Dashboard									
Lists <	Your campa	igns						Create	new Manage groups Refresh
🛛 Campaigns 🛛 👻									Displaying 1-1 of 1 resu
 Campaigns Groups 	Campaign name	Туре	Group	List	Segment	Status	Date added	Send at	Options
T Templates <		v	×			· ·			
★ Api keys	Campaign 1	Regular		Personal Contacts		Draft	11/21/14 3:24 PM	11/21/14 3:54 PM	□ / ⊙
									10 🗸

Click on the 'Pencil icon' to go to the 'Setup' page of this campaign

			🗏 💄 Joe Estates 🗸
Update campaign		Dashboard > Ca	mpaigns > Campaign 1 > Update
MUpdate campaign			Cancel
Campaign name *	Туре	Group	
Campaign 1	Regular	♥ Choose	~
List *	Segment		
Personal Contacts (5 subscribers)	✓ Choose		v
Details Setup Template Confirmation Done			Save and next
	Update campaign Update campaign Campaign name* Campaign 1 List* Personal Contacts (5 subscribers)	Update campaign Campaign name* Campaign 1. List* Personal Contacts (5 subscribers) V Choose	Update campaign Dashboard - Cam Dashboard - Campaign anne* Campaign name* Campaign 1 List* Personal Contacts (5 subscribers) Choose Choose Choose Choose Choose Choose Cho

Note the Campaign 'Steps menu' and the 'Save and next' buttons as you continue.

5

The Campaign set up options for tracking and receiving stats. Click on each header title for information on each setting.

My Yahoo	× 🕅 Yahool Finance Portfolios × 🕅	Fantasy Sports	× MultCloud - Put multiple	clou × 💲 FireFTP	×	SW Group Mail	er Setup ca	. ×] -	÷		
theskywatergroup.com/	mailer/customer/index.php/campaigns/pn879yjafq	53a/setup		👔 🔻 C 🔯 + Google		●☆自	∔ π̂	9	1-	+1 -	•
CUSTOMER AREA	=								Jo 💄	e Estate	s -
Joe Estates	Campaign setup						Dashboard =	Campaign	s - Camp	aign 1 — 1	Set
lashboard											
sts <	Campaign setup									Cano	
impaigns 👻	From name *	From email *		Reply to *		To name * [Av	ailable tags]				
ampaigns. roups	Joe Estates	skywaterestate	s@theskywatergroup.com	skywaterestates@theskywaterg	roup.com	[EMAIL]					
nplates <	Subject * [Available tags]										
i keys	Weekly Newsletter										
	Campaign options										
	Url tracking * Json fe	ed "	Xml feed *	Embed images *	Plain text email *		Email stats				
	No V No	*	No	No	Yes	*	Email sta	ts			
	Change subscriber custom f	ield volue upon com	noign open						Add field	Acadina	
		2				1	201		literatives		
	This is useful if you later need to segment your In most of the cases, you will want to keep these		campaign or who did not and based on ti	at to take another action, like sending the ca	impaign again to subscr	bers that did not o	ipen it previoual	y:			
	C Actions against subscribers	upon campaign ope	n						Add	action	
	When a subscriber opens your campaign, do fol	lowing actions against the subscr	iber itself.							-	

Clicking next will take you to the template area. Here you can create or choose a template.

CUSTOMER AREA					III 🔔 Joe Exterior
Joe Estates	Campaign template			Cantours -	Cempelora - Cempelori - Tem
Deshboard					
line (- Your form has been successfully served				13
Campaigna "	🖾 Campaign template			Import Nonii from art 🛛 Upicad tempieda	a Changa/Select templata Cano
 Campaigna Groups 	inine cas*	Ninity *	Only plain text."	Auto plain taut "	
Templataa 🤇	No	V No	V Na	V 3m	×
Api lorja					
	Content " (/weileble tega]			11.1	
			Q\$# \$ m 2 € ⊡ ⊡ ■		
				0	
	Siglies · Formei · Form	· See • <u>A</u> · (Q) X; JI ?			
	body				
	body				
	body			Bangle UTW kap. Show plain test were	Serve the solation strengthe
	Sody	Confirmation Done		Grangla UTM haps Show plain best one	ēn, Šīna templata thenga

The Mailer Application uses the CKeditor which is a WYSIWYG, a visual template builder. You are encouraged to educate yourself on this editor in the Template area and on their website.

Without going into detail, moving your cursor over each button will give you an information box of what it does. Also, if you are familiar with html coding, you may click on the 'Source' button to view/modify/paste code.



In this case, we will choose the 'Change/Select Template' button above the editor. Your 'My email templates' will appear that you have in your templates page. If more than one, you will choose the template you want for this campaign.



The template you chose will appear in the CKeditor window.



It is here you would modify the template. See the Template Modification Tutorial Addendum at the end of this manual.

There are a number of html tutorials available online and one very popular recommended one is at <u>http://www.w3schools.com/html/</u>. NOTE – The editor used within the application is called CKeditor and documentation and tutorials can be read at <u>http://docs.cksource.com/</u>.

2. GROUPS – CAMPAIGNS > GROUPS.

Campaign Groups are a way to categorize your Campaigns. As an example, if you eventually have 40-50 or more campaigns of both Estates and Yachts, you could create Estate and Yacht groups and simply categorize each of your campaigns within these groups for an easier search feature instead of having to search through all campaigns.

To get more in-depth, if you begin building for example, a 15-series autoresponder (see the Terminology section), you can create an AR15 group. You can create innumerable types of Groups to filter and create views of your campaigns.

For now, we will for simplicity sake create two groups. Click on 'Groups' to access the Group View page.

CUSTOMER	area 📃			1 Joe Estates
liew group:	5			
Dashboard 🕤 Campa	igns - Groups - View all			
View grou	DS		Create new Manage	campaigns Refresh
Name	Campaigns count	Date added	Last updated	Options
No results found.				
				10 🗸

Click on the 'Create new' button, type in "Estates" and click 'Save changes'. Repeat the process creating a "Yachts" group.

CUSTOMER AREA	=	2	1 Joe Estates +
Create new campai	gn group		
Dashboard - Campaigns - Groups	 Create new 		
Create new campaig	gn group		Cancel
Name *			
Estates			5
			Save changes

Once complete, click on the 'Groups' link again to take you to the 'Groups view' page. You should see the two groups you created.

COSTOMER	RAREA 📃		= 1	Joe Estates
ïew group	s			
ashboard 🕤 Campa	aigns > Groups > View all			
View grou	ps	1	Create new Manage camp	paigns Refres
			Disnlavir	ng 1-2 of 2 resul
				ng 1-2 of 2 result
Name	Campaigns count	Date added	Last updated	Options
Name	Campaigns count	Date added		
Name Vachts	Campaigns count	Date added 11/25/14 11:47 AM		
	1		Last updated	Options
Yachts) o	11/25/14 11:47 AM	Last updated	Options

At this point, whether	CUSTOMER AREA 🗮 🚦	🛢 💄 Joe Estates 🔸
you	Update campaign	
create a new campaign or to edit / update	Dashboard > Campaigns > Campaign 1 > Update	
an existing one, you can	₩ Update campaign	Cancel
assign the	Campaign name *	
	Campaign 1	
	Туре	1
	Regular	~
	Group	
	Choose	~
	Choose Yachts (0 campaigns) Estates (0 campaigns)	
	Segment	
	Choose	~
	Details Setup Template Confirmation Done	Save and next

campaign to one of the groups created. Simply choose from the Group dropdown box that group you would like to categorize that campaign with. In this example, 'Estates' group.

If you click on 'Campaigns' to see 'Your Campaigns' list, you will now be able to 'filter' the view of your campaigns. Below, by choosing 'Yachts' in the dropdown box, (0 campaigns) is listed, thus no campaigns appear.

CUSTOMER	AREA	≡				💄 Joe	Estates
/our campa	igns						
Dashboard 🕤 Campai	gns ≻ Viewall						
XYour camp	aigns			Creat	e new Man	age groups	Refresh
							Date
Campaign name	Туре	Group	Lîst	Segment	Status		added
		Yachts (0 campaigns)			0	~	
	1						
No results found.							
No results found.	1						

Below, by choosing 'Estates' in the dropdown box, the 'Estate' campaign appears in the 'Your campaigns' list. Again, the purpose of the 'Groups' link is to categorize and view your lists so that as your campaigns grow, you will have a smaller list of campaigns to view.

CUSTOMER	AREA 🗧	3				💄 .Joe Estates 🔸
′our campa	igns					
Dashboard 🐑 Campai	gns ≻ View all					
XYour camp	aigns			Create new	Manag	e groups Refresh
					Displ	laying 1-1 of 1 result.
Campaign name	Туре	Group	Līst	Segment	Status	Date add
		Estates (1 campaigns) 🗸				V
Campaign 1	Regular	Yechts (0 compaigns) Estates (1 compaigns)	Personal Contacts	•	Draft	11/2 3:24

C. Templates > Templates menu

The first time you login in, you will not have any templates in the 'My Templates' area. You can do one of three things – create your own template, upload your own template either created by another application or downloaded or import it from the provided 'Gallery.'

1. MY TEMPLATES – TEMPLATES > MY TEMPLATES

On first use, this area is blank. It will require creating or uploading a template. This does require a bit of html knowledge which we won't go into here. There are a number of html tutorials available online and one very popular recommended one is at http://www.w3schools.com/html/. As noted above, the editor used within the application is called CKeditor and documentation and tutorials can be read at http://docs.cksource.com/. For more details on modifying a template, see the Template Modification Tutorial Addendum at the end of this manual.

2. GALLERY – TEMPLATES > GALLERY

The Templates > Gallery link takes you to ready-made templates for you to import and use. These templates, once imported, can be modified for your custom use.



To import a template into 'My Templates', click on the menu Templates > Gallery and choose one to import by clicking on the button titled 'Import into my templates' below the template you choose. The chosen template will then show in 'My Templates.' You may choose some of the templates or all of them.

CUSTOMER AREA		📰 🛔 Jor Estates +
Joe Estates	My email templates	Dashboard - My amail templates > View all
O Dashboard		
🗉 Lists 🤇	The template has been successfully imported!	×
🖾 Campaigns 🤇	<u>I</u> My email templates	Create new Uplood template Refresh
I Templates ~ > My templates > Gellery	Single-Asset BW Esta_	
★ Apikeys	SW Estatas: Singlo Assolution	
	izetrez Copy Update	

TERMINOLOGIES

Below are basic terminologies of email marketing that are helpful to understand some of the words used in this reference manual:

- WYSIWYG What You See Is What You Get. This is used to describe a web editor interface that lets you design newsletter templates using buttons similar to those found in a word processor such as Microsoft Word. Examples of buttons include bold, italic, using headings, a button to insert images, and more.
- Autoresponder An autoresponder sends off an email to a subscriber automatically. A single autoresponder is most common – this typically just replies to a subscriber when they sign up. A sequential autoresponder is a little more advanced and allows you to schedule a series of predefined emails to be sent out on a specified schedule to each subscriber.
- Email Lists A list of contact email addresses, usually created by personal contact, subscribed, registered or customers that have purchased products or services.
- Subscriber Lists Lists that have been created by either in a physical store or website whereby email addresses
 were acquired by opt-in processes. Ex. Customer enters store and provides an email address or a visitor on a
 website receives a newsletter, an offer of a discount, a free gift, information or other by providing an email
 address.
- Unsubscribed Lists Lists of contacts that did not 'opt-in', sign up, register or subscribe in giving out their contact information, including email address. These lists are normally acquired from government or public lists that have email addresses exposed or from websites that have been 'scraped'. It is critical that lists like these are verified and further, have a clear 'Unsubscribe' link with the email campaign.
- Purchased Lists Lists that have been bought from a company the includes contact information such as email
 addresses. These are considered a form of an Unsubscribed List. Sending a Purchased List also has a higher
 degree of blacklisting with Email Marketing Service Providers (EMSP) as the contacts may not only contact the
 sending person/company, but file a complaint with the EMSP. If there are a number of complaints, the EMSP
 will terminate the account.
- List Segmentation Send messages to subsets of your subscriber base to help establish a stronger connection via more relevant newsletters. You can target subsets of your subscriber base and mail out promotions and offers based on demographics, purchasing history, geographic location, and more.
- Attachments most EMSP's do not allow attachments for a simple reason they increase the probability of a given message being viewed as spam (as a result, the EMSP (and your) delivery rates may be affected. Attachments can also be flagged as computer virus files. You're better off using inline links in your email, which you can then link to a hosted file. When the user clicks the link, they are given the option to download the file. Not as streamlined as an email attachment, but much more likely to allow the email to reach its full audience.

- Spam Score/Checking finding out whether your subscribers actually got your email is important. If they didn't, why not? Some EMSP's offer spam score utilities that help you determine the likelihood of your newsletter ending up in a spam box before you hit send.
- Opt-In or Unconfirmed Opt-In: When an e-mail service provider requires an "opt-in" process, this means that e-mail recipients have agreed to receive e-mail advertising, e-mail marketing or e-mail communication specifically from the company or individual sending e-mails.
- Double Opt-In or Confirmed Opt-In: When an e-mail service provider requires a "double opt-in" process that means that e-mail recipients have signed up to receive e-mail advertising, marketing or communications specifically from the company or individual sending e-mails. In addition, these individuals have confirmed (usually by clicking a link) that they did indeed, sign up to receive such e-mail communication.
- No Opt-In Requirements: Very few e-mail service providers these days allow for e-mail addresses to be imported without any opt-in requirements. Opt-in requirements have been established to reduce SPAM mail and e-mail abuse.
- List Verification A process that verifies that email addresses exist. If a server does not respond or returns an
 email address does not exist, it is called a bounce. The higher a bounce rate, the higher probability of your
 email address being blacklisted.
- Blacklist A list of known or suspected spammers. There are a number of ways one can be blacklisted DNS (Web site, email address), IP address (number assigned to your devices) are the more evident ones. What is important to understand here is that while your individual computer cannot be tracked, the IP Address (see below) your internet service provider assigns you can be blacklisted. For example, if you send high-bounce bulk email out from your home, your provided IP Address (from ATT&T, Verizon or other) could become blacklisted. Not only will your email to your particular list not get through, but ANY email you send out from your home could be prevented from getting out, and for anyone residing there.
- Spam Triggers There are a number of other 'factors' such as subject line words, use of emphasis (exclamation!), body context words (trigger words such as free, for sale, discounts that are considered off limits or dangerous.) For more information on trigger words see the following website that has some, not all spam trigger words http://webmarketingtoday.com/articles/spamfilter_phrases/. You do not have to memorize this list, it is a list to give you an idea of what can trigger a message as spam. Using one or two of these phrases hardly places your message as spam. But when used in greater number with other factors it will. Spam triggers are also determined by not only 'content' words, but what is in headers, URL's and the body. Again, you may want to take a quick glance at the following website for examples of what a major anti-spam program is looking for http://spamassassin.apache.org/tests_3_0_x.html. Other factors include high send rates, messages marked as spam by receivers, high number of images, etc. There are many factors.
- Internet Protocol Address (IP Address) This number is an exclusive number all information technology devices (printers, routers, modems, et al) use which identifies and allows them the ability to communicate with each other on a computer network. It is a number ****.***** (IP) that could be blacklisted if you have high bounce rates or other factors.
- Domain Name System (DNS) This allows the IP address to be translated to words. It is much easier for us to
 remember a word than a series of numbers. <u>The same is true for email addresses</u>. It is the website name
 www.****.com or email name server @****.com (DNS Name) that could be blacklisted if you have high
 bounce rates or other factors.

TEMPLATE MODIFICATION TUTORIAL ADDENDUM

CKeditor is the template-html editor used within the Mailer Application program. The documentation and tutorials of the editor can be read at <u>http://docs.cksource.com/</u>

The CKeditor is a What You See Is What You Get (WYSIWYG) editor as defined in the Terminology section above:

"This is used to describe a web editor interface that lets you design newsletter templates using buttons similar to those found in a word processor such as Microsoft Word. Examples of buttons include bold, italic, using headings, a button to insert images, and more."

In the following template modification tutorial, the CKeditor will be used in the image examples displayed. Most of the examples will show the 'WYSIWYG' display setting, not the 'Source' (HTML) setting. As stated in the manual, there are a number of html tutorials available online and one very popular recommended one is at http://www.w3schools.com/html/ if you have a desire to learn some html coding.

As a precursor, I will quickly show you the difference between the WYSIWYG display and the Source display. The WYSIWYG display visually shows the template as one receiving it by email or viewing it in a web browser:



The Source display (by clicking on the 'Source' button in the upper left icon area) visually shows the template in the html coding behind the page. This coding normally includes tables, cells, image/website links, CSS styling and content text:



For the most part, this tutorial will discuss template modifications in the WYSISWYG display setting.

NOTE – the following modifications of a template can be done in either the Templates or Campaigns area. This addendum is two-fold, to show you how to modify templates and to show you why you would use one area or the other to make those modifications.

There are two reasons for modifying a template -

First, <u>when you import a template into 'My Gallery'</u>, you will want to make changes that you know will be used throughout all of your campaigns for that template. For example, a company logo that you will want displayed on every campaign. If you don't make the change here, then every time you go to create a new campaign with the template, you will have to add the logo.

Second, when you create a new campaign, there will always be something you want to possibly add/delete or modify. For example, if you are a real estate agent and have a new listing, you will want to add new text content about that newly listed property and pictures.

Below explains how to modify templates in both the Templates > My templates and Campaigns > Campaigns areas. It will be in the Campaign section where modifying images will be shown.

1. Modifying Templates in 'My templates'

Click on Templates > My templates, this takes you to the 'My email templates' page and the template you imported from the Gallery.



Click the 'Update' button to open up the template in the CKeditor.



Here were going to make a simple text edit. Use your cursor and highlight 'NAME' and then just type in the name you want. Once you click save, this saves the template so that your name will now appear every time you choose this template for a campaign.

KYWATER GROUP	AIRCRAFT	ESTATES	SKYWATER GROUP	AIRCRAFT	ESTATES
Skyw <u>www.s</u> SKYW. [COMPAI 954. E 2715 E. Oak	Contact: NAME vater Estates, Inc. skywatergroup.com ATER GROUP LLC NY_PHONE] (mobi 607.4238 (office) EmailAddress dand Park Blvd. Sui derdale, Florida 333	ie) te 100	Skyw <u>www.s</u> SKYW [COMPAI 954. E 2715 E. Oak	tact: Joe Estates vater Estates, Inc. <u>skywatergroup.com</u> ATER GROUP LLC NY_PHONE] (mobil 607.4238 (office) EmailAddress land Park Blvd. Sui Jerdale, Florida 333	le) te 100

The next feature to introduce are the use of 'dynamic tags'. Dynamic tags serves two roles:

Email content personalization -

By inserting information you already have about your contacts in your lists into your email send. For example, if you have a column header of your subscribers first names titled FNAME, you can start a campaign with a personal "Dear [FNAME],".

If the first row of your list has the first name "Lisa", she would open her email from you and it would begin with "Dear Lisa,". NOTE: You must make sure that your List column names match the tag names or the receipt of your email will read "Dear,". Thus every one of your List contacts would receive an email with their first name included.

To extend the use of dynamic tags, if your List has a column with a reason for their contacting you, (ex. Looking to buy or sell their property titled CONTACT_REASON) and another column with a type of property titled PROPERTY_TYPE), you can send an autoresponse email, with an email personalized even further, as in the following example:

Dear [FNAME], thank you for your inquiry concerning [CONTACT_REASON] your [PROPERTY_TYPE].

The output they would see upon receipt:

Dear Lisa, thank you for your inquiry concerning selling your condo.

Replace Key Information -

Tags also offer an easier way to make changes to all of your templates simply by replacing key information with a tag. For example, if your name is 'Elizabeth Jones' in your Account Profile, instead of typing in "Elizabeth Jones" in all of your templates, you can add the tag, [LIST_FROM_NAME]. The tag will pull in your first and last name.

The great thing about this is if you had 30, 50, 100 or more templates and they all needed your name changed, all that would be needed is to change your profile name, as an example, 'Elizabeth' changed to 'Liz' would change all templates! How convenient is that!

For example, the following shows the standard text in the template being used in this manual, which is fine if you had a handful of customized templates in your Templates area. However, what if you eventually have 30, 40 or over 50 different templates and you changed your phone number or your company moved to another location? You would have to change the information in every template in your Templates > My Templates.



The alternative is to use Tags. Consider the following, if Joe Estates wanted to change his name in the template to Joseph Estates, all he would do is change his name from Joe to Joseph in his Account area had he used the Tag – [LIST_FROM_NAME] in all his templates in Templates > My templates.

In this manner, a one-setting name modification changed all the templates! See the above image compared to the image below as an example use of the tags. NOTE – Make sure you use the applicable commas, periods and hyphens.

Balandade Mathematica Balandade		Carl Contractor
Contact: [LIST_FROM_NAME] [COMPANY_NAME] www.skywatergroup.com SKYWATER GROUP LLC [COMPANY_PHONE] (mobile) 954.607.4238 (office) [CAMPAIGN_FROM_NAME] [COMPANY_ADDRESS_1]. [COMPANY_ADDRESS_2] [COMPANY_CITY], [COMPANY_ZONE] [COMPANY_ZIP]	тне SK	ywater Groui
[COMPANT_CITT], [COMPANT_ZONE] [COMPANT_ZIF]	JETS YACH	TS ESTATES EXCHANGE
	in the Lorent	Follow us f 🌶 🖗
If you do not wish to receive periodic on or off-market listings (we remove you from our database. If you only wish to receive listings and/or Yachts), please indicate that in the alternative. Thank yo	from just one or sev	veral of our Divisions (Jets, Est
	DDRESS]	

A full list of tags are listed on the next page.

Tags are an extremely powerful tool to make use of, saving time and creating a more personal message. Below are the tags associated with the Mailer Application.

CAUTION - Keep in mind, the exact title must exist in your List's column headings for those tags related to your <u>contacts</u>. For instance, your contact List headings must be EMAIL, FNAME and LNAME to be able to call their email addresses, first names and last names.

If you are using a tag for your List that does not exist or spelled wrong, it will not output information. For example, if you use the [LNAME] tag and the column header for all last names in your list is titled LAST_NAME, not LNAME, the last name will not be displayed.

Also, if you have a blank cell for a last name for one of your contacts, a last name of course will not appear. (Example – Dear Mr. ,) So you need to be careful! All tags calling your information is simply calling your Account information so there are no column headings to be concerned about.

Tag Output [UNSUBSCRIBE_URL] Link to Unsubscribe [COMPANY_FULL_ADDRESS] User's Company name/address [UPDATE PROFILE URL] Update profile URL [WEB_VERSION_URL] Web URL [CAMPAIGN_URL] Campaign URL [LIST_NAME] Name of the List used [LIST_SUBJECT] List subject name [LIST_DESCRIPTION] List description [LIST_FROM_NAME] Sent from (Your name) [CURRENT_YEAR] **Current Year** [CURRENT_MONTH] Current Month [CURRENT_DAY] Current Day [CURRENT_DATE] **Current Date** [COMPANY_NAME] User's Company name [COMPANY_ADDRESS_1] User's Company address #1 [COMPANY_ADDRESS_2] User's Company address #2 [COMPANY_CITY] User's Company City [COMPANY ZONE] User's Company Zone (State) [COMPANY_ZIP] User's Company Zipcode [COMPANY_COUNTRY] User's Company Country [COMPANY_PHONE] User's Company Phone [CAMPAIGN SUBJECT] Campaign Subject [CAMPAIGN_TO_NAME] Email address sent to [CAMPAIGN_FROM_NAME] User's Email Address [CAMPAIGN_REPLY_TO] Reply to [CAMPAIGN_UID] Campaign ID [SUBSCRIBER_UID] Subscriber ID [EMAIL] Email address sent to [FNAME] List's first name [LNAME] List's last name

Please open a ticket @ GaireGroup.com if you have any questions.